
 
City of Alvin, Texas 

Paul Horn, Mayor 

 
Adam Arendell, Mayor Pro-tem, District B Keith Thompson, District C 
Brad Richards, At Large Position 1 Roger E. Stuksa, District D 
Terry Droege, At Large Position 2 Gabe Adame, District E 
Scott Reed, District A  

 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
 (Council Chambers) 

 

Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 281-388-4255 or 
droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the east and 
west entrances to City Hall.  
 

 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, to 
be held on Thursday, February 18, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at: City Hall, 216 
W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A.  Fire Department Update 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will 
automatically become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 
 
A. Approve minutes of the February 4, 2016 City Council workshop. 
 
B. Approve minutes of the February 4, 2016 City Council regular meeting.  

 
C. Consider Joint Election Agreement And Contract For Election Services with Joyce 

Hudman, County Clerk, Brazoria County, Texas for the May 7, 2016 Election; and 
authorize the City Manager to sign. 

 
D. Acknowledge receipt of the 2015 Racial Profiling Report. 
 

6. OTHER BUSINESS:   
Council may approve, discuss, refer, or postpone items under Other Business. 

 
A. Presentation by Belt Harris Pechacek, LLP of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR) as of September 30, 2015; and Council’s acknowledgment of receipt of 
the CAFR. 



AGENDA - 2 -                     February 18, 2016 
 

B. Consider appointment of Belt Harris Pechacek, LLP as the City’s auditors for the fiscal 
year ending September 30, 2016; and authorize the Mayor to sign the Auditor’s 
Engagement Letter. 

 
C. Consider Resolution 16-R-06; accepting a $10,000 donation from the estate of Diane 

Collins directed to the Alvin Animal Adoption Center (AAAC) to assist in the adoption of 
animals at the shelter. 

 
D. Consider Ordinance 16-B; amending Chapter 15, Miscellaneous Offenses, Section 9.1 – 

Noise; by revising the list of sound nuisances, establishing maximum permissible sound 
levels defined by decibel, establishing exemptions, and providing regulations for business 
sound permits, and setting forth other related provisions thereto. 
 

E. Consider Resolution 16-R-05; supporting the Brazoria County Commissioners’ Court 
action to pursue State of Texas and Federal Restore Act grants for the restoration and 
modernization of the Quintana Beach public fishing pier and for the ecosystems 
restoration of the lower San Bernard River by dredging open the silted mouth of the San 
Bernard River; and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 

 
7. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER 

 
A. Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
 
B. Items of Community Interest. 

 
8. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Pursuant to S.B. No. 1182, City Council Members may make a report or an announcement about items of community interest 
during a meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 

 
A. Announcements and requests from Council members.  

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code on MONDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2016 at 3:00 P.M. 
 

(SEAL)       __________________________________ 
       Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 

 

Removal Date:______________________ 
 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session 
(closed to the public) under the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to 
convene into executive session on any of the above posted agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly 
announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited to sections 551.071 (litigation and 
certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to city), 
551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

 
 



Minutes of the Alvin Library Board— November 5, 2015 at 6pm

The Alvin Library Board met for its regularly scheduled quarterly meeting at 6: 00 pm on
Thursday, August 6, 2015.

The minutes of the August meeting were read and approved.

Danna discussed the situation with the disgruntled patron, computer/ bandwidth needs

and an opening for a part time clerk. Also, chairs at front entrance need to be

reupholstered or replaced. Library staff has been busy with staff development, visiting.
local schools and Winchester Lodge.

Library League is starting a new membership year and reported a successful annual
meeting.

David reported space in the budget to increase bandwidth throughout the county, a
new website, an increase in circulation, library card membership and outreach.

The Open Meeting Act was read and accepted. The next regular meeting of the Alvin
Library Board will be held Thursday, February 4, 2016 at 6pm in the Alvin Library
conference room.

Submitted by:

Shandar Hobbs

Secretary, Alvin Library Board



ALVINSR. BOARDMEETING
January11, 2016

CALLTOORDER: BarbaraBiggerscalledthemeetingtoorderat9:01A.M. Boardmembers
presentwereBettyHodges, BeverlyKimbrough, NellShimek, BarbaraBiggersandDarrell
BradyandWandaGarrett. OtherspresentwereDanKelinske, DirectorParksandRecreation,  
MarlaGrigsbySeniorCenterManager. OurvisitorwasDixieRoberts, CityClerk. DixieRoberts
readthegeneralrulesforopenmeetinglaw. DixiethensworeinSr. BoardmembersBetty
HodgesandWandaGarrett. Minuteswerereadandapprovedasprinted.   
REPORTS: DanKelinskesaidtheairconditionerishookedupandreadyforinspection.  
Thefloorsintheseniorbuildingissettobestrippedandredone. DantalkedaboutAlvin
Residency. MarlaGrigsbyreportedthatsheputinworkorderstoredoourceiling. Barbara
BiggershandedoutcopiesofSr. Board’sGoalsandObjectivesfortheBoardtofilewiththeir
information. BeverlyKimbroughsaiddecoratingwillbeFebruary1, 2016at9A.M. Decorate
forFebruarydancewillbedoneonFebruary16, at2P.M.  
UNFINISHEDBUSINESS:  BettyHodgessaidthatshewrotealettertoRonCarter’sowner,  
TerryWilsonaskingforthemtodonatemoniestowardsanewSr. van. Bettysaidthatwealso
needanewoutdoorsignfortheCenterthatwillbeeasiertouse.  Theheightoftheonewe
haveisasafetyhazardforthosehavingtoclimbaladdertochangethemessages. Marla
Grigsbysaidthatsheisworkingupavolunteerlist. TabledwasdiscussionsofGeneralPlans
andCommitteesforOpenHouse. BettyHodgesmadeamotiontoremoveSr. BoardPictures
offthetable. SecondedbyBeverlyKimbrough; motioncarried. Thephotographyclubwillbe
takingportraitshotsoftheboardmemberswithboardmemberspaying $5.50each. Beverly
Kimbroughmademotiontoapprovepurchaseof11” X14” frameswithmatsfor $214plustax
fromdonationfunds. DarrellBradysecondedmotion, motionpassed. VolunteeroftheYear
nominationswillbeginonFebruary1, 2016.  
NEWBUSINESS: MarlaGrigsbysaidthatonMarch15, 2016TomasLewis, whoperformsa
dancingact, willbeattheSr. Center. Marladistributedformstobeusedtotallyusageofthe
Center. TheBoardmembersmadesuggestionsforsomechanges. Theseformswillserveas
sign- insheetsforthosemeetingfortheeventsattheCenter. PlansfortheVolunteer
Luncheonwerediscussed. BettyHodgesmadeamotiontoorderduffelbagsasgiftsforthe
individualvolunteers, WandaGarrettsecondedmotion, andmotionpassed. Organizations
recognizedwillreceiveframedcertificates. Committeeswillbeappointedatthenextmeeting.  
Thethemeis ‘VolunteersGivingTime: TouchingHearts’. ThedatefortheluncheonisApril14,  
2016. MarladistributedcopiesoftheALVINSENIORCENTERRULESANDREGULATIONSand
askedBoardmemberstoreviewthesebeforethenextmeetingforsuggestionsorcorrections.   

ANNOUNCEMENTS: NextmeetingwillbeFebruary8, 2016

ADJOURNED: 10:48A.M.  

Respectfullysubmitted,  

NellShimek, AlvinSeniorBoardSecretary



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 
THURSDAY FEBRUARY 4, 2016 

6:00 P.M. 
 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
Workshop Session at 6:00 P.M. in the Downstairs Conference Room at City Hall, with the 
following members present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, Terry Droege, 
Brad Richards, Scott Reed, Roger Stuksa, and Keith Thompson.   
 
Staff members present:  Sereniah Breland, City Manager; Dixie Roberts, City Clerk; Robert Lee, 
Police Chief; Michelle Segovia, City Engineer; Larry Buehler, Economic Development 
Coordinator; 
 
WORKSHOP ITEMS 
 
Utility Master Plan 
Richard Weatherly with Freese and Nichols gave a presentation regarding the Utility Master Plan. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 6:45p.m.  
 
 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 

 
 
        __________________________  
          Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
 

ATTEST: ___________________________  
                       Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
THURSDAY FEBRUARY 4, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
Regular Session at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 
present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Mayor Pro-tem Adam Arendell, Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, 
Terry Droege, Brad Richards, Scott Reed, Roger Stuksa, and Keith Thompson.   
 
Staff members present:  Sereniah Breland, City Manager; Bobbi Kacz, City Attorney; Dixie 
Roberts, City Clerk; Robert Lee, Police Chief; Michelle Segovia, City Engineer and Larry Buehler, 
Economic Development Coordinator. 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Judy Zavala, Police Department Chaplain gave the invocation.   
 

 Council member Adame led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 
 
 Council member Reed led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no public comments 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
Approve minutes of the January 21, 2016 City Council and Planning Commission joint workshop. 

 
Approve minutes of the January 21, 2016 City Council regular meeting.  

 
Council member Droege moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Seconded by Council 
member Thompson; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS:   
Consider a final plat of Airgas USA, being a 1.11 acre (710 E. Highway 6) replat of lots 6, 7, 8, 9, 
10, and 11, Block 2 of A. E. Bates Live Oak Addition, volume 4, page 181, Brazoria County Map 
Records, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas.   
On January 6, 2016 the Engineering Department received the Final Plat of Airgas USA for review.  The property is 
located at 710 E. Highway 6 and is being platted in order to consolidate the six lots owned by Airgas into one lot in 
order to facilitate a future expansion of the existing building.  The City Planning Commission unanimously approved 
the plat at their meeting on January 19, 2016. 
 
Council member Stuksa moved to approve  a final plat of Airgas USA, being a 1.11 acre (710 E. 
Highway 6) replat of lots 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 11, Block 2 of A. E. Bates Live Oak Addition, volume 
4, page 181, Brazoria County Map Records, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas.  Seconded by 
Council member Thompson; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 



MINUTES - 2 -                     February 4, 2016 
 
Consider a final plat of Meza Manor, being a subdivision of 2.4897 acres (south of the CR 160 and 
CR 266 intersection) located in the L. C. Dunbaugh Survey, abstract 585, in Brazoria County, 
Texas.   
On January 4, 2016 the Engineering Department received the Final Plat of Meza Manor for review. The property is 
located on the south side of the intersection of County Road 160 and County Road 266 in the City of Alvin 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is being platted in order for the owners to build a home on lot 1 and a shop for 
personal use on lot 2.  The City Planning Commission unanimously the plat at their meeting on January 19, 2016. 
 

Council member Reed moved to approve a final plat of Meza Manor, being a subdivision of 2.4897 
acres (south of the CR 160 and CR 266 intersection) located in the L. C. Dunbaugh Survey, abstract 
585, in Brazoria County, Texas.  Seconded by Council member Droege; motion carried on a vote of 
7 Ayes. 
 
Consider the Amended Chapter 380 Agreement with Moore & Moore Investments, LLC to allow 
for additional commercial buildings; and authorize the City Manager to sign.  
Moore’s Space, a locally owned business, is requesting to amend their existing Chapter 380 Agreement with the City of 
Alvin for the purpose of expanding their business. The agreement was signed February 28, 2014 with a seven (7) year 
term. They have met the obligations of the original agreement early and have an opportunity to expand and bring new 
taxable value to the City of Alvin.  

 
Moore & Moore Investments desires to add three additional structures for lease space. They are requesting to utilize 
the same building setback along Shane Street as provided by the original agreement for one building and be able to 
build a structure five feet inside their new fence along the front of the property on Callaway Drive. The proposed new 
construction cost is valued at $121,000. Pictures and the layout of the proposed improvements are attached. If 
approved, the Amended 380 Agreement will start a new seven (7) year obligation timeframe upon all signatures being 
completed. 

 
When they purchased the former Brazoria County Pct. 3 office building, the stated value was $200,000. After their 
remodeling improvements, the stated value is $355,000. They recently sold it to the Stephan F Austin Community 
Health Network for administrative offices which provides more room for the health clinic operations on Adoue Street to 
expand their services. 
 

Council member Stuksa moved to approve Amended Chapter 380 Agreement with Moore & Moore 
Investments, LLC to allow for additional commercial buildings; and authorize the City Manager to 
sign.  Seconded by Council member Richards; motion carried with 5 members present voting Aye 
and Council member’s Thompson and Droege voting No.  

 
Consider Ordinance 16-A; granting consent to the addition of approximately 103 acres to Brazoria 
County Municipal Utility District No. 24; containing various provisions related to the foregoing 
subject; and making certain findings related thereto.   
Lesco Enterprises, Inc. (LEI) is requesting the 103 acre residential portion of Martha’s Vineyard be annexed to 
Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 24 (MUD #24) for the purpose of funding the necessary infrastructure 
for the residential development.  

 
MUD #24 is a 500-acre tract of land on the north side of the city. There is no development at this time on the 500-acre 
tract. This will allow bonds from MUD #24 to be sold only for the purpose of purchasing and constructing the 
necessary infrastructure to include waterworks systems, sanitary sewer systems, storm sewer systems, drainage 
facilities and roads, or parts of such systems, facilities or roads, to make any and all necessary purchases, construction, 
improvements, extensions, additions and repairs thereto, and to purchase or acquire all necessary land, right-of-way 
easements, sites, equipment, buildings, plants, structures and facilities. 
 

Council member Adame moved to approve Ordinance 16-A; granting consent to the addition of 
approximately 103 acres to Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 24; containing various 



MINUTES - 3 -                     February 4, 2016 
 
provisions related to the foregoing subject; and making certain findings related thereto. Seconded 
by Council member Droege; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Consider Resolution 16-R-02; confirming and ratifying the Utility Services Contract with Lesco 
Enterprises, Inc. for the development of Martha’s Vineyard, a 300 home residential tract on 
approximately 103 acres and a 20-acre commercial tract; and authorize the City Manager to sign the 
Utility Services Contract as presented. 
Lesco Enterprises, Inc. (LEI) is requesting a Utility Services Contract (USC) that will allow the City of Alvin to provide 
water/waste water services to the Martha’s Vineyard development.  Martha’s Vineyard is a residential and commercial 
development fronting the north side of West State Highway 6 within the extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of 
Alvin. This development plans to have 300 residential homes and a separate 20-acre commercial tract along State 
Highway 6. The minimum price for the homes will be $200,000.  There are planned amenities to include green space 
and trails connecting the detention areas.  LEI will be requesting City Council to allow the land to be annexed into 
Municipal Utility District # 24 to assist in the costs of the necessary infrastructure for the project.  A Strategic 
Partnership Agreement (SPA) will be created within 30 days of the execution of this agreement that will allow the City 
of Alvin to collect the sales tax on any commercial development constructed within the development.  The USC will also 
include the request for annexation of the commercial tract into the City of Alvin, should the City wish to incorporate it 
at a later date.  The City will not receive property tax and/or sales tax from the properties. 

 
All permitting will be conducted through the City of Alvin to ensure the value of all residential development meets 
agreed minimum values.  A Capital Recovery Fee per residential lot will also be paid by the developer in the same 
manner Impact Fees are paid by residential development constructed inside the city limits of Alvin. 
 

Council member Thompson moved to approve Resolution 16-R-02; confirming and ratifying the 
Utility Services Contract with Lesco Enterprises, Inc. for the development of Martha’s Vineyard, a 
300 home residential tract on approximately 103 acres and a 20-acre commercial tract; and 
authorize the City Manager to sign the Utility Services Contract.  Seconded by Council member 
Adame; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Consider Resolution 16-R-03; establishing the procedure for the May 7, 2016 General Election in 
Alvin Texas and providing for related matters thereto. 
This is the resolution calling the Municipal General Election for May 7, 2016; and providing for the joint election.  This 
is for the purpose of electing a member from Council District A, Council District D, and At Large Position 2; for a term 
of three (3) years. 

 
The City of Alvin contracts with the Brazoria County Elections Office to conduct our election.  Brazoria County 
purchased the voting machines required to conduct elections.  The City Clerk’s Office handles the filings and all the 
required paper work and postings.  The price of the election depends on how many other governing bodies hold an 
election.  The total cost is split between those entities holding an election, which typically ranges anywhere from 25-30.  
Last year there were only 18 entities holding an election; Alvin’s portion was $ 9,500.  An election contract with 
Brazoria County will be brought to you for approval at the next meeting. 
 
Council member Adame moved to approve Resolution 16-R-03; establishing the procedure for the 
May 7, 2016 General Election in Alvin, Texas and providing for related matters thereto.  Seconded 
by Council member Richards; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER 

 
Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
Ms. Breland reviewed the preliminary list for the February 18, 2016 City Council meeting. 
 
Items of Community Interest. 



MINUTES - 4 -                     February 4, 2016 
 
Mrs. Roberts reviewed items of community interest.   
 
REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Pursuant to S.B. No. 1182, City Council Members may make a report or an announcement about items of community interest during 
a meeting of the governing body.  No action will be taken or discussed. 
 
Announcements and requests from Council members.  
 
Council member Thompson thanked Klotz and Associates for the informative presentation given 
during the workshop regarding the Utility Master Plan. 
 
Council member Reed stated he appreciated the information presented during the workshop. 
 
Council member Richards stated he also appreciated the information presented during the 
workshop. 
 
Council member Stuksa stated he is glad to see council holding more workshops.   
 
Mayor Horn thanked all those involved in the Martha’s Vineyard project.  He encouraged City 
Council to begin thinking about items to discuss during the FY 17 budget goal-setting workshop 
scheduled for next Thursday. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council member Stuksa moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:35 p.m. Seconded by Council member 
Arendell; motion to adjourn carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
 
        __________________________  
          Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
                  Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 
 
 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 

Sum
on 
kno
low
 

Hist
May
May
May
 

If th
 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

 

Re

 
Re

Re

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   T
how many 

own as to wh
wer the price 

torical Elect
y 2013: $
y 2014:  $
y 2015: $

he election is

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d
 Election
 Brazoria

 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

 

: City Cl

m:   Consid
Hudma
authori

  ☐Ordinance

The total amo
political sub
hat political 
per political

tion Cost: 
3,992 
3,836 (genera
9,471 (fewer p

s canceled, t

cted: Rev

ber: 1002

Required: 

ocuments
n Contract 
a County Ele

dation:   M
Jo
El

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

Age

lerk 

der Joint El
an, County 
ize City Man

e    ☐Resolutio

ount of this c
bdivisions h
subdivisions

l subdivision

al election only
political subdi

this contract 

venue  

2-00-3235 

N/A  

attached: 

ections Histo

Move to appro
oyce Hudma
lection; and 

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

enda 

Meetin

lection Agr
Clerk, Braz

nager to sign

n    ☒Contract/

contract has 
hold an elect
s will be hol
n.   

y, doesn’t inclu
ivisions holding

will not take

Expenditur

Amo

Required

orical Price C

ove Joint El
an, County 
authorize Ci

able ☐  

☒ 

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   2

Conta

reement And
zoria Count
n. 

/Agreement   ☐

not yet been
tion.  After 
lding an elec

ude cost for run
g an election)

e effect.   

re N/A

ount: Not y

X    Date 

Comparison

ection Agre
Clerk, Bra

ity Manager

 Revie
 Revie

mmen

2/18/2016 

act: Dixie

d Contract 
ty, Texas fo

☐  Public Heari

n determined
the filing d

ction. The m

n-off) 

 Budge

et determined

Completed

n 

ement And 
azoria Coun
r to sign. 

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

ntary

e Roberts, Ci

for Electio
or the May

ing    ☐ Discus

d.  The price
deadline of 
more entities

eted Item: 

d: February 

Contract for
nty, Texas 

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

y 

ity Clerk 

on Services 
y 7, 2016 E

ssion & Directio

e of the cont
February 19

s holding an 

Yes X No

11, 2016 

r Election Se
for the Ma

fficer, if applic

with Joyce
Election; and

on 

tract depend
9th it will be
election, the

o  N/A

ervices with 
ay 7, 2016 

cable ☐  

e 
d 

s 
e 
e 

 



 1

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  
 
 

JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT FOR ELECTION SERVICES 
 
 THIS CONTRACT by and between CITY OF ALVIN, acting by and through the governing 
body of hereinafter referred to as “Political Subdivision”, and Joyce Hudman, County Clerk of 
Brazoria County, Texas, hereinafter referred to as “County Clerk”, and by authority of section 
31.092(a), Texas Election Code, for the conduct and supervision of the Political Subdivisions 
election to be held on MAY 7, 2016. 

 
 

RECITALS 
 
Political Subdivision is holding a Municipal Election (at the expense of Political Subdivision) 

on MAY 7, 2016.  
 

The County owns an electronic voting system, the Hart InterCivic eSlate Voting System 
(Version 6.1), which has been duly approved by the Secretary of State pursuant to Texas Election 
Code Chapter 122 as amended, and is compliant with the accessibility requirements set forth by 
Texas Election Code Section 61.012. Political Subdivision desires to use the County’s electronic 
voting system and to compensate the County for such use and to share in certain other expenses 
connected with joint elections in accordance with the applicable provisions of Chapters 31 and 271 
of the Texas Election Code, as amended. 
  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements, and benefits to 
the parties, IT IS AGREED as follows: 
 

I. ADMINISTRATION 
 

The parties agree to hold a “Joint Election” in accordance with Chapter 271 of the Texas 
Election Code and this agreement. The County Clerk of Brazoria County shall coordinate, 
supervise, and handle all aspects of administering the Joint Election as provided in this agreement. 
Political Subdivision agrees to pay Brazoria County for equipment, supplies, services, and 
administrative costs as provided in this agreement. The County Clerk shall serve as the 
administrator for the Joint Election; however, the Political Subdivision shall remain responsible for 
the decisions and actions of its officers necessary for the lawful conduct of its election. The County 
Clerk shall provide advisory services in connection with decisions to be made and actions to be 
taken by the officers of the Political Subdivision. 
 

It is understood that other political subdivisions may wish to participate in the use of the 
County’s electronic voting system and polling places, and it is agreed that Brazoria County and the 
County Clerk may enter into other joint election agreements and contracts for election services for 
those purposes on terms and conditions generally similar to those set forth in this contract. Political 
Subdivision agrees that Brazoria County may enter into joint election agreements with other 
political subdivisions that may have territory located partially or wholly within the boundaries of 
Political Subdivision, and in such case all parties sharing common territory shall share a joint ballot 



 2

on the county’s electronic voting system at the applicable polling places. In such cases, costs shall 
be divided among the participants.   

 
At each polling location, joint participants shall share voting equipment and supplies to the 

extent possible. The participating parties shall share a mutual ballot in those precincts where 
jurisdictions overlap. However, in no instance shall a voter be permitted to receive a ballot 
containing an office or proposition stating a measure on which the voter is ineligible to vote. 
Multiple ballot styles shall be available in those shared polling places where jurisdictions do not 
overlap. 
 

II. LEGAL DOCUMENTS 
  

Political Subdivision shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption, and publication of all 
required election orders, resolutions, notices, and any other pertinent documents required by the 
Texas Election Code and/or Political Subdivision’s governing body, charter, or ordinances.  With 
reference to publications, the “County Clerk” will publish the “Notice of Test of Automatic 
Tabulating Equipment” and the “Notice of Election”.  If a Political Subdivision is holding any type 
Special Election, the Political Subdivision may have to publish their own “Notice of Election” in 
order to meet additional requirements.   Please advise the Brazoria County Election’s Office if your 
Political Subdivision must print a separate notice so we do not include your Political Subdivision in 
the Notice published by our office. 

 
Preparation of the necessary materials for notices and the official ballot shall be the 

responsibility of each participating authority, including translation to languages other than English. 
Each participating authority shall provide a copy of their respective election orders and notices to 
the County Clerk’s Election Department.  

 
It is currently unclear whether the preclearance section of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as 

amended, applies and whether preclearance is required.  If it is determined that preclearance is 
required, the County Clerk’s Election Department, with the assistance of the Brazoria County 
District Attorney’s Office, shall prepare a submission to the United States Department of Justice for 
preclearance of the joint election procedures and polling places, pursuant to the Voting Rights Act 
of 1965, as amended.  If preclearance is required, each Political Subdivision shall provide 
necessary documentation for preclearance and this submission to the Department of Justice shall 
be made on behalf of all political subdivisions participating in joint elections on MAY 7, 2016 .  
 
 

III.   STATUTORY COMPLIANCE 
 

Political subdivisions shall follow all applicable State and Federal laws related to Elections 
including but not limited to Sec. 52.072 of the Election Code, which states, “a proposition on the 
ballot shall be printed on the ballot in the form of a single statement”.   Failure to do so may 
prohibit the political subdivision’s participation in a Joint Election. 
 



 3

 
IV. VOTING LOCATIONS 

 
The County Clerk’s Election Office shall select and arrange for the use of and payment for 

all election day voting locations. Voting locations will be, whenever possible, the usual voting 
location for each election precinct in elections conducted by the county. The proposed voting 
locations are listed in Attachment A of this agreement. In the event a voting location is not 
available, the Elections Department will arrange for use of an alternate location with the approval of 
the Political Subdivision. The Elections Department shall notify the Political Subdivision of any 
changes from the locations listed in Attachment A. 
 

If polling places for the MAY 7, 2016 joint election are different from the polling place(s) 
used by Political Subdivision in it’s most recent election, Political Subdivision agrees to post a 
notice no later than MAY 6, 2016 at the entrance to any previous polling places in the jurisdiction 
stating that the polling location has changed and stating the political subdivision’s polling place 
names and addresses in effect for the MAY 7, 2016 election.  Any changes in voting location from 
those that were used in the MAY 9, 2015 COUNTYWIDE JOINT elections will be posted by the 
County Clerk’s Election Office. 

 
 

V. ELECTION JUDGES, CLERKS, AND OTHER ELECTION PERSONNEL 
 

Brazoria County shall be responsible for the appointment of the presiding judge and 
alternate judge for each polling location in accordance with Chapter 32 of the Texas Election Code. 
The County Clerk shall make emergency appointments of election officials if necessary. Upon 
request by the County Clerk, Political Subdivision agrees to assist in recruiting polling place 
officials who are bilingual (fluent in both English and Spanish). 
 

The Elections Department shall notify all election judges of the eligibility requirements of 
Subchapter C of Chapter 32 of the Texas Election Code, and will take the necessary steps to 
insure that all election judges appointed for the Joint Election are eligible to serve. 
 

The County Clerk shall arrange for the training and compensation of all election judges and 
clerks. The Elections Department shall arrange for the date, time, and place for presiding election 
judges to pick up their election supplies. Each presiding election judge will be sent a letter from the 
Elections Department notifying him of his appointment, the time and location of training and 
distribution of election supplies, and the number of election clerks that the presiding judge may 
appoint. 
 

Each election judge will receive compensation at an hourly rate of $12.00.  Each election 
clerk will receive compensation at an hourly rate of $10.00. The election judge will receive an 
additional sum of $25.00 for picking up the election supplies prior to election day and for returning 
the supplies and equipment to the central counting station after the polls close.  All judges and 
clerks will receive $30.00 for attending training. 
 

It is agreed by all parties that at all times and for all purposes hereunder, all election judges, 
clerks, and all other personnel involved in this election are temporary part-time employees subject 
only to those benefits available to such employees. 



 4

 
 

VI. PREPARATION OF SUPPLIES AND VOTING EQUIPMENT 
 

The Elections Department shall arrange for all election supplies and voting equipment 
including, but not limited to official ballots, sample ballots, voter registration lists, and all forms, 
signs and other materials used by the election judges at the voting locations. At each polling 
location, joint participants shall share voting equipment and supplies to the extent possible. The 
participating parties shall share a mutual ballot in those precincts where jurisdictions overlap. 
However, in no instance shall a voter be permitted to receive a ballot containing an office or 
proposition stating a measure on which the voter is ineligible to vote. Multiple ballot styles shall be 
available in those shared polling places where jurisdictions do not overlap. The Elections 
Department shall provide the necessary voter registration information, instructions, and other 
information needed to enable the election judges in the voting locations that have more than one 
ballot style to conduct a proper election.  If special maps are needed for a particular Political 
Subdivision, the Election Department will order the maps and pass that charge on to that particular 
Political Subdivision.  

 
Political Subdivision shall furnish the County Clerk a list of candidates and/or propositions 

showing the order and the exact manner in which the candidate names and/or proposition(s) are to 
appear on the official ballot (including titles and text in each language in which the authority’s ballot 
is to be printed).  THE POLICTICAL SUBDIVISION SHALL ALSO PROVIDE A COPY OF EACH 
CANDIDATES APPLICATION TO THE BRAZORIA COUNTY ELECTION’S OFFICE. This list shall 
be delivered to the Elections Department as soon as possible after ballot positions have been 
determined by each of the participating authorities. Each participating authority shall be responsible 
for proofreading and approving the ballot insofar as it pertains to that authority’s candidates and/or 
propositions. 
 

VII. EARLY VOTING 
 
The participating authorities agree to conduct joint early voting and to appoint the County 

Clerk as the Early Voting Clerk in accordance with Sections 31.097 and 271.006 of the Texas 
Election Code. Political Subdivision agrees to appoint the County Clerk’s permanent county 
employees as deputy early voting clerks. The participating authorities further agree that each Early 
Voting Location will have an “Officer in Charge” that will receive compensation at an hourly rate of 
$12.00.  The clerks at each location will receive compensation at an hourly rate of $10.00. Early 
Voting by personal appearance will be held at the locations, dates, and times listed in Attachment 
“B” of this document.   Any qualified voter of the Joint Election may vote early by personal 
appearance at any one of the joint early voting locations. 
 

As Early Voting Clerk, the County Clerk shall receive applications for early voting ballots to 
be voted by mail in accordance with Chapters 31 and 86 of the Texas Election Code. Any requests 
for early voting ballots to be voted by mail received by the Political Subdivision shall be forwarded 
immediately by fax or courier to the Elections Department for processing. 
 

The Elections Department shall, upon request, provide the Political Subdivision a copy of 
the early voting report on a daily basis and a cumulative final early voting report following the 
election. 



 5

 
 

VIII. EARLY VOTING BALLOT BOARD 
 

Brazoria County shall appoint an Early Voting Ballot Board (EVBB) to process early voting 
results from the Joint Election. The Presiding Judge, with the assistance of the Elections 
Department, shall appoint two or more additional members to constitute the EVBB. The Elections 
Department shall determine the number of EVBB members required to efficiently process the early 
voting ballots. 

 
IX. CENTRAL COUNTING STATION AND ELECTION RETURNS 

 
The County Clerk shall be responsible for establishing and operating the central counting 

station to receive and tabulate the voted ballots in accordance with the provisions of the Texas 
Election Code and of this agreement.   

 
The participating authorities hereby, in accordance with Section 127.002, 127.003, and 

127.005 of the Texas Election Code, appoint the following central counting station officials: 
 
Counting Station Manager:    Janice Evans 
Alternate Counting Station Manager: Brandy Pena 
Tabulation Supervisor:     Susan Cloudt  
Alternate Tabulation Supervisor:  Brandy Pena 
Presiding Judge:       Amanda Little  
Alternate Presiding Judge:   Dottie Cornett 
 
The Elections Department will prepare the unofficial canvass reports after all precincts have 

been counted, and will deliver a copy of the unofficial canvass to the Political Subdivision as soon 
as possible after all returns have been tabulated. All participating authorities shall be responsible 
for the official canvass of their respective elections.  

 
The Elections Department shall be responsible for conducting the post-election manual 

recount required by Section 127.201 of the Texas Election Code unless a waiver is granted by the 
Secretary of State. Notification and copies of the recount, if waiver is denied, will be provided to 
each participating authority and the Secretary of State’s Office. 

 
The Elections Department shall submit all Political Subdivision’s precinct by precinct returns 

to the Texas Secretary of State’s Office electronically. 
 
The Elections Department shall post all election night results to our website on election 

night.       http://www.Brazoriacountyvotes.com    
 
 

X. ELECTION EXPENSES AND ALLOCATION OF COSTS 
 

The participating authorities agree to share the costs of administering the Joint Election. 
Allocation of costs, unless specifically stated otherwise, is mutually agreed to be shared according 
to a formula which is based on the cost per polling place.  Since we will be switching to “Vote 



 6

Centers”, every political subdivision will be voting at every location.  For billing purposes, each 
“Vote Center” will be assigned precincts in the area and  if a political subdivision is on the ballot for 
any of the assigned precincts, they will share in the cost of that voting location. 

 
It is agreed that the normal rental rate charged for the County’s voting equipment used on 

election day shall be divided equally among the participants utilizing each polling location. 
 
 Costs for Early Voting by Personal Appearance will be divided by all Political Subdivisions 

as follows:  Total cost of all 11 locations will be divided by all Political Subdivisions holding 
elections on MAY 7, 2016.  Cost will be based on registered voters.  

 
 

XI. WITHDRAWAL FROM CONTRACT DUE TO CANCELLATION OF ELECTION 
 

Political Subdivision may withdraw from this agreement and the Joint Election should it 
cancel its election in accordance with Sections 2.051 - 2.053 of the Texas Election Code, or should 
it be later ruled that the election is not needed.   Political Subdivision is fully liable for any expenses 
incurred by Brazoria County on behalf of Political Subdivision.  Any monies deposited with the 
county by the withdrawing authority shall be refunded, minus the aforementioned expenses.  

 
 

XII. RECORDS OF THE ELECTION 
 

The County Clerk is hereby appointed general custodian of the voted ballots and all records 
of the Joint Election as authorized by Section 271.010 of the Texas Election Code. 
 

Access to the election records shall be available to each participating authority as well as to 
the public in accordance with applicable provisions of the Texas Election Code and the Texas 
Public Information Act. The election records shall be stored at the offices of the County Clerk or at 
an alternate facility used for storage of county records. The Elections Department shall ensure that 
the records are maintained in an orderly manner so that the records are clearly identifiable and 
retrievable. 
 

Records of the election shall be retained and disposed of in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 66.058 of the Texas Election Code. If records of the election are involved in any pending 
election contest, investigation, litigation, or open records request, the County Clerk shall maintain 
the records until final resolution or until final judgment, whichever is applicable. It is the 
responsibility of each participating authority to bring to the attention of the County Clerk any notice 
of pending election contest, investigation, litigation or open records request which may be filed with 
the participating authority. 
 

XIII. RECOUNTS 
 

A recount may be obtained as provided by Title 13 of the Texas Election Code. Political 
Subdivision agrees that any recount shall take place at the offices of the County Clerk, and that the 
County Clerk shall serve as Recount Supervisor and the Political Subdivision’s official or employee 
who performs the duties of a secretary under the Texas Election Code shall serve as Recount 
Coordinator. 



 7

 
The Elections Department agrees to provide advisory services to the District as necessary 

to conduct a proper recount and cost of the recount depends on the size of the election and 
number of precincts to be recounted. 
 

XIV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
1. It is understood that to the extent space is available, that other districts and political 

subdivisions may wish to participate in the use of the County’s election equipment and voting 
places, and it is agreed that the County Clerk may contract with such other districts or political 
subdivisions for such purposes and that in such event there may be an adjustment of the pro-rata 
share to be paid to the County by the participating authorities. 
 

2. The County clerk shall file copies of this document with the Brazoria County Treasurer 
and the Brazoria County Auditor in accordance with Section 31.099 of the Texas Election Code. 
 

3. In the event that legal action is filed contesting Political Subdivision’s election under Title 
14 of the Texas Election Code, Political Subdivision shall choose and provide, at its own expense, 
legal counsel for the County, the County Clerk, and additional election personnel as necessary. 
 

4. Nothing in this contract prevents any party from taking appropriate legal action against 
any other party and/or other election personnel for a breach of this contract or a violation of the 
Texas Election Code. 
 

5. The parties agree that under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, neither 
Brazoria County nor Political Subdivision can enter into an agreement whereby either party agrees 
to indemnify or hold harmless another party; therefore, all references of any kind, if any, to 
indemnifying or holding or saving harmless for any reason are hereby deleted. 
 

6. This agreement shall be construed under and in accord with the laws of the State of 
Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Brazoria County, 
Texas. 
 

7. In the event of one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof and this agreement shall be construed 
as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

 
8. All parties shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of the State of 

Texas, all local governments, and any other entities with local jurisdiction. 
 

9. The waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this agreement shall not operate 
as or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. 
 

10. Any amendments of this agreement shall be of no effect unless in writing and signed by 
all parties hereto. 
 

 



 8

XV. COST ESTIMATES AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDS 
 

It is estimated that Political Subdivision’s obligation under the terms of this agreement shall 
be DETERMINED AFTER THE ELECTION.  Political Subdivision agrees to pay to Brazoria County 
a deposit of $2,000.00. This deposit shall be paid to Brazoria County within 10 days after the final 
candidate filing deadline.  The final candidate filing deadline is FEBRUARY 19, 2016.   Therefore, 
deposit is due by MARCH 4, 2016.  The exact amount of the Political Subdivision’s obligation 
under the terms of this agreement shall be calculated after the MAY 7, 2016 election and if the 
amount of the Political Subdivision’s obligation exceeds the amount deposited, the Political 
Subdivision shall pay to Brazoria County the balance due within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 
final invoice from the County Clerk’s Election Department.   However, if the amount of the Political 
Subdivision’s obligation is less than the amount deposited, Brazoria County shall refund to the 
Political Subdivision the excess amount paid within thirty (30) days after final costs are calculated. 
 
IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this agreement, its multiple originals all of equal force, has been 
executed on behalf of the parties hereto as follows, to-wit: 
 
(1) It has on the _______ day of _______________, 2016 been executed on behalf of Brazoria 
County by the County Judge or the County Clerk pursuant to the Texas Election Code so 
authorizing; 
 
(2) It has on the _______ day of _______________, 2016 been executed on behalf of the Political 
Subdivision by its Presiding Officer or authorized representative, pursuant to an action of the 
Political Subdivision so authorizing; 
 
 
 
       BRAZORIA COUNTY 
 
 
 

 By __________________________________ 
            Joyce Hudman, County Clerk                          
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       CITY OF ALVIN 
 
        
 
By: _________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 Dixie Roberts, City Clerk    Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
  
 



May‐07 May‐08 May‐09 May‐10 May‐11 May, 2012 May, 2013 May, 2014 May, 2015 CANCELLED IN 2015

ALVIN ISD $8,878.89 $12,861.46 $17,003.15 $12,102.37 $14,488.69 $10,904.23 $12,036.53 $10,938.25 $12,036.53
ANGLETON ISD $6,387.79 $7,000.28 $7,879.46 $6,993.36 $7,764.47 $13,694.78
BRAZOSPORT ISD $3,676.67 $3,372.89 $2,484.33 $9,572.61 $3,177.72 $4,076.51 $3,177.72
COLUMBIA-BRAZORIA ISD $8,250.41 $8,163.52 $7,812.45 $4,465.90 $4,465.90
DANBURY ISD $2,033.67 $2,200.65 $2,531.33 $1,746.59
PEARLAND ISD $7,061.49 $10,993.01 $13,097.89 $12,737.42 $13,297.63 $10,800.47 $11,693.26 $11,430.68 $19,450.21
SWEENY ISD $2,066.25 $4,919.75 $2,490.27 $2,295.64 $1,818.97 $2,278.94 $4,646.98
CITY OF ALVIN $3,051.61 $4,024.94 $5,477.07 $4,381.10 $5,137.90 $3,745.61 $3,991.94 $3,836.15 $9,470.56
CITY OF ANGLETON $2,255.37 $2,528.82 $4,798.97 $3,206.67 $3,196.19 $3,273.38 $2,770.68 $2,919.55 $5,217.47
VILLAGE OF BAILEY'S PRAIRIE $1,490.78 $1,490.78
VILLAGE OF BONNEY
CITY OF BRAZORIA $1,173.38 $1,241.30 $1,320.13 $2,819.26
CITY OF BROOKSIDE VILLAGE $1,312.53 $1,807.25 $1,429.40 $1,437.10 $1,572.89
CITY OF CLUTE $1,325.08 $1,982.58 $2,197.64 $2,898.39 $2,056.35 $4,703.34 $3,096.40 $3,600.59
CITY OF DANBURY $1,227.00 $1,199.50 $1,195.10 $1,312.07 $1,312.07 $1,152.20 $1,858.52
CITY OF FREEPORT $1,622.94 $2,122.60 $2,567.41 $2,653.35 $2,247.92 $2,176.79 $2,372.03 $3,370.03 $3,672.69
CITY OF HILLCREST VILLAGE  
TOWN OF HOLIDAY LAKES $1,235.07 $1,235.07 $1,164.58 $1,505.85
CITY OF IOWA COLONY $1,779.75 $2,734.12
IOWA COLONY CRIME $1,497.12
VILLAGE OF JONES CREEK $1,574.60 $1,323.07
CITY OF LAKE JACKSON $2,892.16 $3,843.61 $4,173.59 $6,242.94 $3,613.06 $3,268.22 $3,110.96 $3,547.43 $7,824.91
CITY OF LIVERPOOL $1,016.90 $1,093.14 $1,164.93
CITY OF MANVEL $1,891.59 $2,337.14 $2,700.41 $1,256.71 $1,336.17 $2,221.95 $2,495.80
CITY OF OYSTER CREEK $1,060.90 $1,065.96 $1,167.33 $1,074.54 $1,334.23
CITY OF PEARLAND $6,768.68 $13,745.55 $11,943.20 $12,898.42 $10,388.57 $11,737.57 $12,078.21 $21,415.66
TOWN OF QUINTANA $1,172.00 $1,378.80 $1,667.92 $1,578.08 $1,439.30 $1,655.27 $1,976.65 $2,170.37
CITY OF RICHWOOD $1,127.18 $1,233.60 $1,257.43 $1,574.60 $1,189.05 $1,332.23 $1,903.95
RICHWOOD CRIME $1,332.23
CITY OF SANDY POINT
VILLAGE OF SURFSIDE BEACH $1,065.96 $995.69 $1,277.23 $1,165.13 $1,277.23 $1,097.86 $1,283.10 $1,284.57 $1,662.16
CITY OF SWEENY $1,152.42 $1,376.97 $1,449.69 $1,434.53 $1,259.30 $1,471.38 $1,145.88 $1,334.25 $2,253.49
CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA $1,295.93 $1,352.97 $1,451.40 $1,673.77 $1,758.30

COST OF MAY ELECTIONS 



May‐07 May‐08 May‐09 May‐10 May‐11 May, 2012 May, 2013 May, 2014 May, 2015 CANCELLED IN 2015
COST OF MAY ELECTIONS 

ANGLETON DANBURY HOSP $2,490.27
SWEENY HOSP $2,066.25 $2,738.90 $3,054.22 $3,191.29 $2,490.27 $1,818.97 $2,278.94 $1,818.97
ALVIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE $13,073.95 $12,476.78 $11,209.03 $11,039.25
BRAZOSPORT COLLEGE $10,680.51 $9,572.61
ANGLETON DD#1 $4,659.96
BRAZ CO DD#5 $1,813.37 $2,619.63 $2,401.26
BRAZ CO DD#8 $1,642.86 $1,838.81
VELASCO DRAINAGE DIST
BRAZ CO FRESHWATER #2 $1,241.65
TREASURE ISLAND MUD $995.69
VARNER CREEK UD $1,553.70 $1,589.97
BRAZ CO GROUNDWATER $12,808.68 $10,034.57
PORT FREEPORT $17,450.69 $25,008.40 $24,008.89 $18,688.70 $18,688.70
EMERGENCY SERVICE DIST #3 11,187.44 $11,475.16 $11,475.16
EMERGENCY SERVICE DIST #2 $6,666.31 $8,694.61
EMERGENCY SERVICE DIST #1
BRAZORIA COUNTY MUD #2 $1,363.95
BRAZORIA COUNTY MUD #26 $1,481.59
WEST BC DRAINAGE DIST #11 $5,709.81 $9,899.57 $2,807.78 $2,807.78
BRAZ CO. CONST AMENDMENT $40,998.81

$123,842.91 $105,112.80 $125,517.36 $117,473.95 $113,302.94 $110,590.49 $112,748.14 $118,426.05 $108,464.41 $55,961.54
Number of Pol Sub participating 24 Pol Sub 28 Pol Sub 24 Pol Sub 26 Pol Sub 23 Pol Sub 22 Pol Sub 23 Pol Sub 28 Pol Sub 18 Pol Sub

City of 
Angleton 
had 
separate 
election

Started 
Opening 
Shadow 
Creek EV

We did not 
open 1 EV & 
2 ED  ‐ West 
of Brazos

Notice that some 
very large political 
subdivision 
cancelled their 
elections in 2015 
causing a large 
increase for the 18 
Pol Sub that did 
hold elections.

When comparing cost you need to  compare even numbered years to even numbered year and odd numbered years to odd numbered years.  Some political subdivisions have an election 
scheduled every year, some have elections every other year in even numbered years and some have every other year in odd numbered years.   



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
law
bod
aud
APD
be n
reas
mos
pers
uses
coll
ente
prev
proc
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

 
Re

 
Re

Re

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   A
w enforcemen
dy of that ag
dio and vide
D’s ability t
noted that H
son for this i
st of our ra
sonnel manu
s Brazos Tec
lected in tha
ered at the d
vious year. T
cess for capt

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d
 2015 Ra

 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

 

:  Police 

m:   Ackno

  ☐Ordinance

Article 2.134
nt agencies s
gency’s city 
o recording 
o record; the
Hispanics ar
is due to how

acial data. T
ually enter a 
chnology as 
at software. 
discretion of
The Police D
turing data.  

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

ocuments
acial Profilin

dation:   St

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

Age

 

owledge rece

e    ☐Resolutio

 of the Texa
submit a rep
or county. T
devices. AP

erefore only 
re generally
w the State 

The State of
driver’s lice
our softwar
If an indivi

f the officer
Department i
 

venue  

N/A  

attached: 
ng Tier 1 Rep

taff recomm

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

enda 

Meetin

eipt of the 20

n    ☐Contract/

as Code of C
port containi
The Alvin P
PD receives
stops that r

y under-repo
collects and
f Texas ide
ense number
e and hardw
idual does n
. The report
is currently p

Expenditur

Amo

Required

port for TCO

ends council

able ☐  

☒ 

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   2

Conta

015 Racial P

/Agreement   ☐

Criminal Pro
ing the previ
Police Depar
 a partial ex
esult in a cit

orted and wh
d reports data
ntifies Hisp

r, the field fo
ware for citati
not have a d
ted data in t
partnering w

re N/A

ount:

X    Date 

OLE (Texas 

l acknowled

 Revie
 Revie

mmen

2/18/2016 

act: Chief

Profiling Rep

☐  Public Heari

cedure requi
ious year’s i
rtment (APD
xemption on
tation or arre
hites are ge
a on driver’s
panics as wh
or race is aut
ion writing, 

driver’s licen
this year’s re
with Brazos 

 Budge

Completed

Commission

dge receipt o

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

ntary

f Robert E L

port. 

ing    ☐ Discus

ires that not 
incident-bas

D) patrol veh
n reporting r
est are used 

enerally ove
s licenses, w
hite in rega
tomatically p
the report is

nse when sto
eport is sim
Technology

eted Item: 

d: February 

n on Law En

f the 2015 R

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

y 

Lee 

ssion & Directio

later than M
ed data to th
hicles are eq
requirement
for this repo

er-reported. 
which is whe
ard to race. 
populated as
s generated f
opped, the r

milar to the d
y to develop 

Yes No

11, 2016 

nforcement)

Racial Profili

fficer, if applic

on 

March 1st tha
he governing
quipped with
ts because o
ort. It should
The primary

ere we obtain
When APD

s white. APD
from the data
racial data i
data from the
an improved

o  N/A

ing Report 

cable ☐  

at 
g 
h 
f 
d 
y 
n 
D 
D 
a 
s 
e 
d 

 













De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
Har
Acc
FY1
our 
 
Pur
the 
(Sep
City
 
Step
incl
 
 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

 

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   A
rris Pechace
cepted Audi
15, the City 
financial sta

suant to Sec
auditor’s op
ptember 30,
y Council; an

phanie Harri
luded for you

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d
 Auditor 
 FY15 C
 Single A

 

: Financ

m:   Presen
Report
the CA

  ☐Ordinance

As required 
ek, LLP, for
ting Standar
received an 

atements “gi

ction 103.00
pinion must 
 2015).  The
nd to the Cit

is, from Bel
ur review.  I

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

ocuments
Disclosure L
AFR 

Audit Report

Age

e 

ntation by Be
t (CAFR) as

AFR. 

e    ☐Resolutio

by state stat
r the fiscal 
rds mandate
unmodified

ive a true and

3 of the Tex
be filed with
e CAFR, wh
ty Clerk for 

t Harris Pec
I will also ha

venue  

N/A  

attached: 
Letter 

ts 

enda 

Meetin

elt Harris Pe
s of Septemb

n    ☐Contract/

tue, an indep
year ended 

e that audito
d opinion fro
d fair view” 

xas Local G
h the City S
hich include
filing.   

chacek, LLP 
ave hard cop

Expenditur

Amo

Required

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   2

Conta

chacek, LLP
ber 30, 2015

/Agreement   ☐

pendent aud
September 

ors must exp
om the audito

of the City’

overnment C
ecretary wit
s the audito

will present
pies available

re N/A

ount:

   Date 

mmen

2/18/2016 

act: Junru

P of the City
5; and Coun

☐  Public Heari

dit has been 
30, 2015.  

press an opi
ors – which 
s financial p

Code, the an
thin 180 day
r’s opinion, 

t the report. 
e for you at t

 Budge

Completed

ntary

u Roland, AC

y’s Compreh
ncil’s acknow

ing    ☐ Discus

completed b
At the end

inion on the
is the highe

position. 

nnual financ
ys after the la

will be pres

  A scanned
the council m

eted Item: 

d: 

y 

CM/CFO 

hensive Annu
wledgment 

ssion & Directio

by the CPA 
d of an audi
e financial r
st form of as

cial statemen
ast day of th
sented to the

d version of 
meeting. 

Yes No

ual Financia
of receipt o

on 

firm of Bel
it, Generally
records.  Fo
ssurance tha

nts, including
he fiscal yea
e Mayor and

the CAFR i

o  N/A

l 
f 

lt 
y 
r 

at 

g 
ar 
d 

s 

 



Re

 
 

Re

Re

 

 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

dation:   M

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

Move to ackn

ead, if applica

f applicable ☐

owledge rec

able ☐  

☐  

ceipt of the 2

 Revie

 Revie

2015 Compre

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

ehensive An

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

nnual Financ

fficer, if applic

cial Report.

cable ☒ 























































































































































































































































































Current assets
Cash and equity in pooled cash and investments $ 2,486,173 $ 5,789,467    $ -                   $ -                   
Investments -                   500,582       -                   -                   
Accounts receivable (net of allowance

for uncollectibles) -                   1,044,080    -                   -                   
Inventory -                   99,363         -                   -                   
Restricted cash, cash equivalents, and
investments:

Construction -                   -                   -                   86,886         
Customer deposits -                   1,116,610    -                   -                   

2,486,173    8,550,102    -                   86,886         

Capital assets:
Land -                   937,829       -                   -                   
Buildings -                   5,523,533    -                   -                   
Improvements -                   1,997,154    -                   360,309       
Infrastructure -                   43,127,846  -                   3,963,806    
Equipment -                   2,015,905    -                   199,503       
Construction in progress -                   -                   -                   -                   
Less allowance for depreciation -                   (31,374,197) -                   -                   

-                   22,228,070 -                   4,523,618

-                   22,228,070  -                   4,523,618    

$ 2,486,173    $ 30,778,172  $ -                   $ 4,610,504    

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - pensions $ -                   $ 184,287       $ -                   $ -                   
Deferred charge on refunding -                   749,014       -                   -                   

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources -                   933,301 -                   -                   

2006B
Certificates of

Obligation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Impact Refunding

Assets

Total Capital Assets (Net)

Fees

Total Current Assets

WATER & SEWER FUND - SUB-FUNDS (Page 1 of 2)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

City of Alvin, Texas

September 30, 2015

Utility Bonds

2005 Rev. &

126



$ -                   $ -                   $ -                   $ 8,275,640    
-                   -                   -                   500,582       

-                   -                   -                   1,044,080    
-                   -                   -                   99,363         

47,302         -                   9,159,438    9,293,626    
-                   -                   -                   1,116,610    

47,302         -                   9,159,438    20,329,901  

 
-                   -                   -                   937,829       
-                   -                   -                   5,523,533    

570,842       -                   -                   2,928,305    
1,343,215    -                   -                   48,434,867  

-                   -                   -                   2,215,408    
-                   -                   85,000         85,000         
-                   -                   -                   (31,374,197) 

1,914,057 -                   85,000         28,750,745  

1,914,057    -                   85,000         28,750,745  

$ 1,961,359    $ -                   $ 9,244,438    $ 49,080,646  

$ -                   $ -                   $ -                   $ 184,287       
-                   -                   -                   749,014       

-                   -                   -                   933,301       

2015
Certificates of

Obligation

2011
Certificates of

2008
Certificates of

Obligation

Total

Fund
Sewer

Obligation

Water and

127



Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ -                   $ 152,371       $ -                   $ -                   
Accrued interest payable -                   240,011       -                   -                   
Bonds payable - current -                   1,702,438    -                   -                   
Compensated absences -                   43,871         -                   -                   

    Current Liabilities From Restricted Assets
Customer deposits -                   1,116,610    -                   -                   

-                   3,255,301    -                   -                   

Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable, net of deferred charges -                   22,359,684  -                   -                   
Compensated absences -                   4,875           -                   -                   
Net pension obligation -                   1,026,401    -                   -                   

-                   23,390,960 -                   -                   

-                   26,646,261  -                   -                   

Deferred inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - pensions -                   49,408         -                   -                   

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets -                   8,208,588    -                   4,523,618
Unrestricted net position 2,486,173    (3,192,784)   -                   86,886         

$ 2,486,173 $ 5,015,804 $ -                   $ 4,610,504

Certificates of

September 30, 2015

WATER & SEWER FUND - SUB-FUNDS (Page 2 of 2)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Total Net Position

Obligation

City of Alvin, Texas

2006B

Total Current Liabilities

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Fees Utility Bonds
Impact Refunding

2005 Rev. &

128



$ -                   $ -                   $ 240,775       $ 393,146       
-                   -                   -                   240,011       
-                   -                   -                   1,702,438    
-                   -                   -                   43,871         

-                   -                   -                   1,116,610    

-                   -                   240,775       3,496,076    

-                   -                   -                   22,359,684  
-                   -                   -                   4,875           
-                   -                   -                   1,026,401    

-                   -                   -                   23,390,960  

-                   -                   240,775       26,887,036  

-                   -                   -                   49,408         

1,914,057 -                   85,000         14,731,263  
47,302         -                   8,918,663    8,346,240    

$ 1,961,359 $ -                   $ 9,003,663    $ 23,077,503  

2015
Certificates of

Obligation

2008 2011
Certificates of Certificates of

Water and
Sewer

Obligation Obligation Fund

Total

129



Operating Revenues
Water service $ -                   $ 3,465,496    $ -                   $ -                   
Sewer service -                   3,640,730    -                   -                   
Other revenue 476,695       17,771         -                   -                   

476,695 7,123,997 -                   -                   

Operating Expenses
Water service 128,891 1,262,598    102,515       -                   
Sewer service -                   2,109,626    -                   -                   
Depreciation -                   1,465,889    -                   -                   

128,891 4,838,113 102,515       -                   

347,804       2,285,884 (102,515)      -                   

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment revenue 3,796           13,068         -                   -                   
Interest and fiscal agent fees -                   (715,133)      -                   -                   

3,796 (702,065) -                   -                   

351,600       1,583,819 (102,515)      -                   

Capital contribution -                   3,517,191    -                   -                   
Transfers in -                   946,250       -                   
Transfers (out) -                   (10,836,379) (852,106)      -                   

-                   (6,372,938) (852,106)      -                   

351,600       (4,789,119) (954,621)      -                   

Beginning net position 2,134,573 9,804,923    954,621       4,610,504    

$ 2,486,173    $ 5,015,804 $ -                   $ 4,610,504

Certificates of
Obligation

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

NET POSITION - WATER & SEWER FUND - SUB-FUNDS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

City of Alvin, Texas

Change in Net Position

Ending Net Position

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers

Total Contributions and Transfers

Fees Utility Bonds

Total Operating Revenues

2005 Rev. &
Impact Refunding

2006B

130



$ -                   $ -                   $ -                   $ 3,465,496    
-                   -                   -                   3,640,730    
-                   -                   -                   494,466       

-                   -                   -                   7,600,692    

4,083           -                   1,144,213    2,642,300    
6,998           -                   -                   2,116,624    

-                   -                   -                   1,465,889    

11,081         -                   1,144,213    6,224,813    

(11,081)        -                   (1,144,213)   1,375,879    

-                   -                   3,123           19,987         
-                   -                   -                   (715,133)      

-                   -                   3,123           (695,146)      

(11,081)        -                   (1,141,090)   680,733       

-                   -                   -                   3,517,191    
-                   -                   10,144,753  11,091,003  
-                   (17,519)        -                   (11,706,004) 
-                   (17,519)        10,144,753  2,902,190

(11,081)        (17,519)        9,003,663    3,582,923    

1,972,440    17,519 -                   19,494,580  

$ 1,961,359 $ -                   $ 9,003,663    $ 23,077,503  

2015
Certificates of

Obligation
Certificates of Certificates of

Obligation Obligation

Total
Water and

Sewer
2011

Fund

2008

131



Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 480,870       $ 7,117,436 $ -                   $ -                   
Payments to suppliers (138,492)      (1,367,047) (102,515)      -                   
Payments to employees -                   (1,802,638) -                   -                   

342,378       3,947,751    (102,515)      -                   

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from other funds -                   946,250       -                   -                   
Transfer to other funds -                   (10,836,379) (852,106)      -                   

-                   (9,890,129)   (852,106)      -                   

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets -                   (99,642)        -                   (168,614)      
Proceeds from issuance of bonds -                   10,000,000  -                   -                   
Interest and fiscal agent fees paid -                   (359,407)      -                   -                   
Principal paid on capital debt -                   (1,421,954) -                   -                   

-                   8,118,997    -                   (168,614)      

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investments -                   (1,087)          -                   -                   
Interest on investments 3,796           13,068 -                   -                   

Net Cash Provided 
3,796           11,981         -                   -                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equity
346,174       2,188,600    (954,621)      (168,614)      

Beginning cash and equity in pooled cash
 and investments 2,139,999    4,717,477 954,621 255,500

$ 2,486,173 $ 6,906,077  $ -                   $ 86,886

Ending Cash and Equity in Pooled Cash
and Investments:
Unrestricted cash and equity in pooled cash

and investments $ 2,486,173    $ (3,504,159) $ -                   $ 86,886         
Restricted cash and equity in pooled cash

and investments -                   10,410,236  -                   -                   

$ 2,486,173    $ 6,906,077 $ -                   $ 86,886

in Pooled Cash and Investments

Ending Cash and Equity in
Pooled Cash and Investments

  by Investing Activities

Bonds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Net Cash (Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
 and Related Financing Activities

Obligation
Impact Refunding

Fees Utility

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

WATER & SEWER FUND - SUB-FUNDS (Page 1 of 2)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

City of Alvin, Texas

Certificates of
2005 Rev. & 2006B

132



$ -                   $ -                   $ -                   $ 7,598,306    
(43,008)        -                   (903,438)      (2,554,500)   

-                   -                   -                   (1,802,638)   

(43,008)        -                   (903,438)      3,241,168    

-                   -                   10,144,753  11,091,003  
-                   (17,519)        -                   (11,706,004) 

-                   (17,519)        10,144,753  (615,001)      

(104,081)      -                   (85,000)        (457,337)      
-                   -                   -                   10,000,000  
-                   -                   -                   (359,407)      
-                   -                   -                   (1,421,954)   

(104,081)      -                   (85,000)        7,761,302    

-                   -                   -                   (1,087)          
-                   -                   3,123           19,987         

-                   -                   3,123           18,900         

(147,089)      (17,519)        9,159,438    10,406,369  

194,391 17,519 -                   8,279,507    

$ 47,302 $ -                   $ 9,159,438    $ 18,685,876

$ 47,302         $ -                   $ 9,159,438    $ 8,275,640    

-                   -                   -                   10,410,236  

$ 47,302 $ -                   $ 9,159,438    $ 18,685,876  

2015
Certificates of

Obligation
Sewer

Total
Water and

Certificates of Certificates of
Obligation Obligation Fund

2008 2011

133



Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) $ 347,804 $ 2,285,884 $ (102,515) $ -                   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Depreciation -                   1,465,889 -                   -                   

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets:
Accounts receivable 4,175           (54,111)        -                   -                   
Deferred outflows -                   2,715           -                   -                   
Inventories -                   16,895         -                   -                   
Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable (9,601)          68,774 -                   -                   
Accrued interest payable -                   104,669       -                   -                   
Deferred inflows -                   49,408         -                   -                   
Compensated absences -                   (10,280)        -                   -                   
Customer deposits -                   47,550         -                   -                   
Net pension liability -                   (29,642)        -                   -                   

$ 342,378       $ 3,947,751    $ (102,515)      $ -                   

Noncash investing, capital, and 
financing activities:
Capital contribution $ -                   $ 3,517,191    $ -                   $ -                   

Certificates of
Obligation

2006B

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

WATER & SEWER FUND - SUB-FUNDS (Page 2 of 2)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

City of Alvin, Texas

Fees Utility Bonds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

2005 Rev. &
Impact Refunding

134



$ (11,081) $ -                   $ (1,144,213) $ 1,375,879    

-                   -                   -                   1,465,889    

-                   -                   -                   (49,936)        
-                   -                   -                   2,715           
-                   -                   -                   16,895         

(31,927)        -                   240,775       268,021       
-                   -                   -                   104,669       
-                   -                   -                   49,408         
-                   -                   -                   (10,280)        
-                   -                   -                   47,550         
-                   -                   -                   (29,642)        

$ (43,008)        $ -                   $ (903,438)      $ 3,241,168    

$ -                   $ -                   $ -                   $ 3,517,191    

2015
Certificates of

Obligation
Certificates of Certificates of

Obligation Obligation

2008 2011
Sewer

Water and

Fund

Total

135











































































































De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
aud
as t
man
FY1
Staf
serv
 
Prio
Bas
 
FY1
Lak
Frie
Web
Dee
La P
 
* A
$75
 
 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   C
dited; and a f
he City’s ind
nagement an
16 financial 
ff is requesti
vices for FY

or Fiscal Ye
se audit fees:

16 Audit Bud
ke Jackson: $
endswood: $
bster: $49,50
er Park: $63,
Porte: $66,9

A single aud
50,000 of fed

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d

: Financ

m:   Consid
year e
Engage

  ☐Ordinance

Chapter 103
financial stat
dependent a

nd staff.    Be
statement au
ing that City
16. 

ar Engagem
: $35,355 + 

dgets for Com
$42,000 
$45,000 
00 
,600 
00 

dit is additio
deral funds in

cted: Rev

ber: 
111-
251-

Required: 

ocuments

Age

e 

der appointm
ending Sept
ement Letter

e    ☐Resolutio

3 of the Loc
tement prepa
auditors for s
elt Harris Pe
udit; with an
y Council ap

ment Fees 
$7,000 for s

mparative C

onal auditing
n a fiscal yea

venue  
-9001-00-3110
-9002-00-3110

N/A  

attached: 

enda 

Meetin

ment of Belt
tember 30, 
r. 

n    ☒Contract/

cal Governm
ared based o
seven years, 
echacek, LLP
n additional e
prove the en

ingle audit.  

Cities: 

g procedure
ar.  

Expenditur
 
 Amo

Required

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   2

Conta

t Harris Pech
2016, and 

/Agreement   ☐

ment Code r
n the audit, 
and has an e

P is proposin
estimated fe
ngagement o

 

es that are r

re N/A

ount:
$36,4
Single

x    Date 

mmen

2/18/2016 

act: Junru

hacek, LLP 
authorize 

☐  Public Heari

requires citie
annually.  B
excellent pro
ng a base est
e of $7,000,

of Belt Harri

required if t

 Budge
16 ($7,000 for
e audit) 

Completed

ntary

u Roland, AC

as the City
the Mayor 

ing    ☐ Discus

es to have i
Belt Harris Pe
ofessional/w
timated fee o
 if the City r

is Pechacek, 

the City rec

eted Item: 
r  

d: 

y 

CM/CFO 

’s auditors f
to sign th

ssion & Directio

its records a
echacek, LL

working relat
of $36,416 f
requires a sin
LLP to prov

ceives and e

Yes x No

for the fisca
he Auditor’s

on 

and account
LP has served
tionship with
for the City’
ngle audit*.
vide auditing

expends ove

o  N/A

l 
s 

s 
d 
h 
s 

g 

r 

 



 
Re

 
 

Re

Re

 

 Engagem
 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

ment Letter f

dation:   M
au
sig

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

for FY16 

Move to app
uditors for th
gn the Audit

ead, if applica

f applicable ☐

prove the ap
he fiscal yea
tor’s Engage

able ☒ 

☐  

ppointment 
ar ending Se
ement Letter

 Revie

 Revie

of Belt Ha
eptember 30
r. 

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

arris Pechace
, 2016, and 

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

ek, LLP as
authorize th

fficer, if applic

 the City’s 
he Mayor to 

cable ☒ 

















De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 

Sum
Ado
 
Ms.
she 
the 
spon
cost
 
City
mon
reso
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

 
Re

 
 

Re

Re

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   
option Cente

. Diane Coll
wanted a po
estate wish
nsor costs as
t of animal a

y of Alvin C
ney with val
olution.  

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d
 Resoluti

 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

: Anima

m:   Consid
Collins
adoptio

  ☐Ordinance

The estate 
er (AAAC). 

lins was a lo
ortion of her
es to donate
ssociated wi
adoptions at 

Code of Ord
lue of five th

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

ocuments
ion 16-R-06 

dation:   M
A

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

Age

al Control (P

der Resoluti
s and direct
on of animal

e    ☒Resolutio

of Alvin re

ocal resident
r estate go to
e $10,000 to
ith animal ad
the AAAC; 

dinances, Se
housand doll

venue x 

N/A  

attached: 

Move to app
AAC progra

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

enda 

Meetin

olice) 

on 16-R-06
ted to the A
ls located at 

n    ☐Contract/

sident Dian

t who passed
o helping an
o the City o
doptions (spa
increasing a

c. 2-16. - A
lars ($5,000.

Expenditur

Amo

Required

prove Resolu
am to sponso

able ☒ 

☒ 

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   2

Conta

6; accepting 
Alvin Anim
the shelter.

/Agreement   ☐

ne Collins w

d away in 2
nimals at the 
of Alvin.  M
ay/neuter, ta
animal adopt

cceptance of
00) or greate

re N/A

ount: $10,00

X    Date 

ution 16-R-0
or adoptions 

 Revie

 Revie

mmen

2/18/2016 

act: Chad 

a $10,000 
mal Adoption

☐  Public Heari

wishes to do

015.  Ms. C
AAAC.  M

Ms. Collin’s 
ags/microchi
tions. 

of gifts, read
er which is g

 Budge

00 

Completed

06 acceptin
of animals. 

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

ntary

Fontenot, C

donation fr
n Center (A

ing    ☐ Discus

onate $10,00

Collins made
Ms. Collin’s e

asked that t
ipping and fe

ds: A gift or 
given to the 

eted Item: 

d: February 

ng a $10,00
   

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

y 

Captain 

rom the esta
AAAC) to a

ssion & Directio

00 to the A

e it known to
executor has
this donation
ees) in order

donation of
city shall be

Yes No

11, 2016 

0 donation 

fficer, if applic

ate of Diane
assist in the

on 

Alvin Anima

o family tha
 advised tha
n be used to
r to lower the

f property o
e accepted by

o  N/A

directed to 

cable ☐  

e 
e 

al 

at 
at 
o 
e 

r 
y 

 



  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-R-06 
 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS ACCEPTING THE DONATION OF $10,000 FROM THE ESTATE 
OF DIANE COLLINS TO THE ALVIN ANIMAL ADOPTION CENTER 
TO ASSIST IN THE ADOPTION OF ANIMALS LOCATED AT THE 
CENTER. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas is committed to enhancing a better quality of life for the 
citizens and their children, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Alvin continues to develop strategic partnerships that bring new 
opportunities to the City, and 

 
WHEREAS, Diane Collins was a local resident who passed away in 2015, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Alvin was contacted by the executor of the Estate of Diane Collins 
advising the estate wishes to donate $10,000 to a City of Alvin donations account dedicated to a 
program to sponsor costs associated with animal adoptions to assist in lowering the cost of 
animal adoptions at the Alvin Animal Adoption Center with the goal of increasing animal 
adoptions, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire for the City of Alvin to save the taxpayers money while providing 
better services to the community, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council, on behalf of the City of Alvin, desires to accept the 
donation and express its sincere appreciation to the Estate of Diane Collins for their generous 
contribution, NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That the City Council hereby adopts the recitals and findings set forth in the 
preamble hereof. 
 
Section 2. That the City Council, on behalf of the citizens of the City of Alvin, hereby 
expresses its appreciation to the Estate of Diane Collins, and accepts the generous donation of 
$10,000 to provide monetary assistance to aid in the adoption of animals at the Alvin Animal 
Adoption Center. 
 
Section 3. Open Meeting Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov’t Code. 
 
  



 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the _______ day of ____________________, 2016. 
                                                                             
 
ATTEST:                                                                 CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
By: ____________________________ By: _____________________________ 

Dixie Roberts, City Clerk   Paul A. Horn, Mayor      
 
 
 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
enfo
esta
in r
also
vibr
 
The
ever
bus
Priv
 
Ord
pres
day
cass
 
 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   T
orcement is 
ablishes a ma
residential ar
o sets forth 
rational nuis

e existing or
ry individua
inesses whic
vate individu

dinance 16-B
sumption wh

ys. Lastly, O
settes.  

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d
 Ordinan
 Ordinan

 

: Police 

m:   Consid
Noise;
levels 
sound 

  ☒Ordinance

The existing 
forced to re

aximum perm
reas and 70 
the method 

sances but th

rdinance req
al event hel
ch in the no
uals will still

B also better 
hen 3 or mor

Ordinance 16

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

ocuments
nce 16-B – re
nce 16-B - cl

Age

der Ordinanc
 by revising
defined by d
permits, and

e    ☐Resolutio

ordinance re
ely on the 85
missible sou
decibels bot
and manne

his will be pr

quires that a
ld. Ordinanc
ormal course
l be required

defines wha
re citations o

6-B removes

venue  

N/A  

attached: 
edline 
lean 

enda 

Meetin

ce 16-B; am
g the list of 
decibel, esta
d setting fort

n    ☐Contract/

egulating so
5 decibel lev

und level of 6
th day and n

er of measur
rohibited in t

a private ind
ce 16-B all
e of their bu
d to obtain a 

at constitutes
or 3 or more
s language r

Expenditur

Amo

Required

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   2

Conta

mending Cha
sound nuisa
blishing exe
th other relat

/Agreement   ☐

und nuisanc
vel establish
65 decibels d
night for non
ring noise le
the proposed

dividual or b
lows for the
usiness prov
single use p

s noise viola
e complaints
referencing o

re N/A

ount:

X    Date 

mmen

2/18/2016 

act: Chief

apter 15, M
ances, establ
emptions, an
ted provision

☐  Public Heari

ces does not 
hed by state 
during dayti
nresidential 
evels. The e
d ordinance.

business obta
e issuance o
vide an area 
permit for ea

ations by ani
s from more 
outdated tec

X Budge

Completed

ntary

f Robert E L

Miscellaneous
lishing maxi
nd providing
ns thereto.  

ing    ☐ Discus

establish a d
law. The pr

ime and 60 d
properties. 

existing ord

ain a one-tim
of a yearly 
for outside 

ach event.  

imals includ
than one ho

chnology suc

eted Item: 

d: February 

y 

Lee 

s Offenses, 
imum permi
 regulations 

ssion & Directio

decibel leve
roposed Ord
decibels duri
The propose
inance does

me use nois
sound/noise
live or reco

ding creating
ousehold occ
ch as steam 

Yes No

11, 2016 

Section 9.1
issible sound
for business

on 

l and curren
dinance 16-B
ing nighttime
ed ordinance

s not addres

se permit fo
e permit fo
orded music

g a rebuttable
cur within 60

engines and

o  N/A

-
d 
s 

nt 
B 
e 
e 
s 

r 
r 

c. 

e 
0 
d 

X 



 
Re

 
 

Re

Re

 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

dation:   M

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

Move to appro

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

ove Ordinan

able ☐  

☒ 

nce 16-B ame

 Revie
 Revie

ending noise

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

e regulations

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

s. 

fficer, if appliccable ☐  



ORDINANCE NO. 16-B 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15, MISCELLANEOUS 
OFFENSES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, SECTION 9.1–NOISE; 
BY REVISING THE LIST OF SOUND NUISANCES, ESTABLISHING 
MAXIMUM PERMISSIBLE SOUND LEVELS DEFINED BY DECIBEL, 
ESTABLISHING EXEMPTIONS, AND PROVIDING REGULATIONS 
FOR BUSINESS NOISE PERMITS; ALSO PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABLIITY CLAUSE; A PENALTY CLAUSE;  PUBLICATION AND 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City of Alvin to minimize the exposure of citizens to 

excessive noise and to protect, promote and preserve the public health, comfort, convenience, 
safety and welfare; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City to control the level of noise in a manner which 
promotes commerce; protects the sleep and repose of citizens; promotes the use, value and 
enjoyment of property; and preserves the quality of the environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to address common noise complaints caused by repetitive and 
excessive noise by adding maximum decibel levels and by adding restrictions on noise from 
animals and from amplifiers in public right-of-way; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The above and foregoing premises are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
Section 2. That Section 15-9.1 “Noise – Unreasonably loud, disturbing noises prohibited; 
enumeration” is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
. . . 
 
Sec. 15-9.1.10.1 Noise - Sound nuisances.Noise - Unreasonably loud, disturbing noises 
prohibited; enumeration.  

 
It shall be unlawful for any person to make, continue, or cause to be made or continued, 

any unreasonably loud, disturbing, or unnecessary noise which causes material distress, 
discomfort or injury to persons of ordinary sensibilities. It also shall be unlawful for any 
person to make, assist in making, permit, continue, cause to be made or continued or permit 
the continuance of any sound which exceeds the maximum permitted sound levels specified in 
section 15-10.2. The acts enumerated in this article, among others, are declared to be sound 
nuisances which are unreasonably loud, irritating, disturbing or excessive sounds in violation 
of this article, but such enumeration shall not be deemed to be exclusive: 



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 2 of 6 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to make, continue, or cause to be made or continued, any 
unreasonably loud, disturbing, or unnecessary noise which causes material distress, discomfort or 
injury to persons of ordinary sensibilities in the vicinity thereof. Any noise of such character, 
intensity and duration which substantially interferes with the peaceful and comfortable 
enjoyment of private homes or businesses by persons of ordinary sensibilities is hereby declared 
to be a nuisance and is hereby prohibited. The following acts, among others, are declared to be 
unreasonably loud, disturbing and unnecessary noises in violation of this section, but said 
enumeration shall not be deemed to be exclusive:  

(a) Horns or other signaling devices. The sounding of any horn or signaling device on any 
automobile or other vehicle on any street or public place of the city, except as a danger 
warning; the creation by means of any such signaling device of any unreasonably loud or 
harsh sound; and the sounding of any such device for an unnecessary and unreasonable 
period of time.  

(b) Animals, birds, etc. The keeping of any animal or bird which by causing frequent or long-
continued noise shall disturb the comfort or repose of any persons in the vicinity.  

(1) The keeping of any animal or bird that causes or makes frequent or long and 
continued sound, that unreasonably disturbs, injures, or endangers the comfort, 
repose, health, peace, or safety of ordinary, reasonable persons of normal 
sensibilities and ordinary tastes, habits, and modes of living who reside in the 
vicinity thereof is hereby prohibited and declared to be unlawful as a sound 
nuisance in violation of this article, regardless of whether the sound so created by 
said animal or bird is within the permissible levels specified in section 15-10.2. 

 
(2) In any prosecution for a violation of this section, the fact that any animal or bird 

has been allowed or permitted to persistently and chronically violate this section, 
as demonstrated by the issuance of three (3) or more citations and/or the receipt of 
three (3) or more complaints from more than one household within a sixty (60) 
day period creates a rebuttable presumption that such noise was in violation of 
this article. 

(c) Exhausts. The discharge into the open air of the exhaust of any steam engine, internal 
combustion engine or motor vehicle except through a muffler or other device which will 
effectively prevent loud or explosive noises therefrom. Power and pneumatic equipment. 
Operate or permit to be operated any power or pneumatic equipment outdoors in a 
residential area, or within one hundred fifty (150) feet of the boundary line of a 
residential lot between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Motorized electric or fuel 
powered equipment including, but not limited to tractors, lawnmowers and other similar 
devices or equipment shall be considered power equipment. 

(d) Defect in vehicle or load. The use of any automobile or other vehicle so out of repair, so 
loaded or in such manner as to create loud and unnecessary grating, grinding, rattling or 
other noise.  



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 3 of 6 
 

(e) Loading and unloading vehicles, opening boxes. The creation of a loud and excessive 
noise in connection with loading or unloading any vehicle or the opening and destruction 
of bales, boxes, crates and containers.  

(f) Construction or repairing of buildings. The erection (including excavating), demolition, 
alteration or repair of any building other than between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 
p.m. on weekdays, except in case of urgent necessity in the interest of public health and 
safety, and then only with a permit from the building inspector which shall be granted for 
a period of time not to exceed the period in which the emergency continues.  

(g) Schools, courts, churches, hospitals. The creation of any excessive noise on any street 
adjacent to any school, church or court while the same are in use, or adjacent to any 
hospital, which unlawfully interferes with the workings of such institution or which 
disturbs or unduly annoys the patients in the hospital, provided conspicuous signs are 
displayed in such streets indicating that the same is a school, church, hospital or court 
street.  

(h) Pile drivers, hammers and other machinery. The operation between the hours of 10:00 
p.m. and 7:00 a.m. of any pile driver, steam shovel, pneumatic hammer, derrick or other 
appliance or machinery, the use of which is attended by loud or unusual noise.  

(i) Vehicular sound amplification systems.  

(1) A sound amplifier which is part of or connected to a radio, stereo receiver, 
compact disc player, mp3, cellular devicescassette tape player or other similar 
device or service operated within a motor vehicle operated at such a volume that it 
causes material distress, discomfort or injury to persons of ordinary sensibilities in 
the vicinity thereof is plainly audible.  

(2) If the sound [is] audible at a distance of thirty (30) feet from the source or causes 
a person to be aware of or feel the vibration accompanying the sound at a distance 
of thirty (30) feet from the source, a prima facie case shall be established that the 
radio, stereo receiver, compact disc player, cassette player or other similar device 
is being operated at a volume that causes material distress, discomfort or injury to 
persons of ordinary sensibilities is plainly audible.  

For purposes of this subsection, “plainly audible” means any sound produced by a sound 
amplification system from within a vehicle that clearly can be heard at a distance of thirty 
(30) feet or more. Measurement standards shall be the auditory senses, based on direct 
line of sight. Words or phrases need not be discernible, and bass reverberations are 
included. 

(j) It shall be prima facie unlawful and a violation of this article for any person to operate or 
cause to be operated any source of vibration or to discharge or allow the escape of any 
vibration in such a manner as to cause by such operation a vibration that can be detected 
without the aid of instruments at any point within the receiving real property. 

Sec.15-10.2. Maximum permissible sound levels. 

(a) No person shall conduct, permit or allow any activity or sound source to produce a sound 
that is discernible beyond the property line of the property on which the sound is being received 



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 4 of 6 
 

that, when measured as provided in section 15-10.3,  exceeds the following applicable dB(A) 
level listed for the property on which the sound is received:  

(1) Residential property.  
 
a. Sixty-five dB(A) during daytime hours. 
b. Sixty dB(A) during nighttime hours. 

 
(2) Non-residential property. Seventy db(A) during either daytime or nighttime hours.  

(b) The dB(A) levels set forth in this section applies to the property where the sound is being 
received. Any sound that, when measured at the property where the sound is being received, 
exceeds the dB(A) levels set forth in this section is a prima facie violation of this article.  

Sec. 15-10.3. Measures and Standards 

Under this article, measurement of sound may be made, as applicable, with a sound level 
meter meeting the standards prescribed by the American National Standards Institute (ANSI). 
Measurements of sound shall be taken so as to provide a proper representation of the sound being 
measured. The Chief of Police shall develop procedures to be followed in measuring sounds.  

Sec. 15-10.4. Exemptions.  

Sounds caused by the following are exempt from the prohibitions set out in section 15-10.2 
and are in addition to the exemptions specifically set forth in this section:  

(1) Repairs of utility structures which pose a clear and immediate danger to life, health, or 
significant loss of property;  

(2) Sirens, whistles, or bells lawfully used by emergency vehicles, or other alarm systems 
used in case of fire, collision, civil defense, police activity, or imminent danger; 

(3) The emission of sound for the purpose of alerting persons to the existence of an 
emergency or the emission of sound in the performance of emergency work;  

(4) Repairs or excavations of bridges, streets, or highways by or on behalf of the City of 
Alvin, or other governmental entity, between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., when 
public welfare and convenience renders it impractical to perform the work between 7:00 
a.m. and 7:00 p.m.;  

(5) Reasonable activities conducted on public playgrounds and public or private school 
grounds, which are conducted in accordance with the manner in which such spaces are 
generally used, including, but not limited to, school athletic and school entertainment 
events; and 



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 5 of 6 
 

(6) Individuals possessing an authorized permit from the City, such as a special event or 
parade permit, shall be allowed to engage in activity authorized by the permit. 

Sec. 15-10. Reserved.  

Sec. 15-11. Noise.- Use of amplifying devices and sound trucks.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to use or operate, or cause to be used or operated, any 
mechanical or electrical device, machine, apparatus or instrument to intensify, amplify or 
reproduce the human voice or to produce, reproduce, intensify or amplify any other sound in any 
building or on any premises of the city or in or on any vehicle in the city for any purpose 
whereby the sound therefrom is cast directly upon the public streets or places, or which is so 
placed or operated that the sound coming therefrom can be heard on the streets or on neighboring 
premises to the annoyance or inconvenience of a reasonable person having normal nervous 
sensibilities, and being of ordinary tastes, habits and modes of living.  

 
(b) Notwithstanding the above provisions, amplifying devices and sound trucks may be used 

in the city provided a permit therefor is first obtained from the chief of police and such permit 
designates the term of the permit as determined by the Chief of Police.  

 
(c) Businesses who during the course of normal operations provide live or pre-recorded 

music or voice amplification and which have designated areas for live music or pre-recorded 
music or voice amplification, such as an outside stage, bandstand, or similar designated area 
where outside events or meals are held may, upon application to the Chief of Police, obtain a 
permit which is good for one (1) calendar year from date of issuance.  

 
(d) All permits issued under this ordinance are subject to restrictions designated at time of 

issuance and may be revoked due to violations of restrictions or other cause.  
 
. . . 
 
Section 3.  Severability.   Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 4.  Penalty. Any person who violates or causes, allows, or permits another to violate any 
provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction 
thereof, shall be punished by a fine in accordance with the general penalty section 1-5 of the 
Code of Ordinances.  Each occurrence of any such violation of this Ordinance shall constitute a 
separate offense. Each day on which any such violation of this Ordinance occurs shall constitute 
a separate offense. 
 



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 6 of 6 
 

Section 5.  Publication.  The City Clerk of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish this 
ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as 
required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapt. 52, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading on the ______day of __________, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ______________________________  
      Dixie Roberts, City Clerk         Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 16-B 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15, MISCELLANEOUS 
OFFENSES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, SECTION 9.1–NOISE; 
BY REVISING THE LIST OF SOUND NUISANCES, ESTABLISHING 
MAXIMUM PERMISSIBLE SOUND LEVELS DEFINED BY DECIBEL, 
ESTABLISHING EXEMPTIONS, AND PROVIDING REGULATIONS 
FOR BUSINESS SOUND PERMITS; ALSO PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABLIITY CLAUSE; A PENALTY CLAUSE;  PUBLICATION AND 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City of Alvin to minimize the exposure of citizens to 

excessive noise and to protect, promote and preserve the public health, comfort, convenience, 
safety and welfare; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City to control the level of noise in a manner which 
promotes commerce; protects the sleep and repose of citizens; promotes the use, value and 
enjoyment of property; and preserves the quality of the environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to address common noise complaints caused by repetitive and 
excessive noise by adding maximum decibel levels and by adding restrictions on noise from 
animals and from amplifiers in public right-of-way; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The above and foregoing premises are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
Section 2. That Section 15-9.1 “Noise – Unreasonably loud, disturbing noises prohibited; 
enumeration” is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
. . . 
 
Sec. 15-10.1 Noise - Sound nuisances.  

 
It shall be unlawful for any person to make, continue, or cause to be made or continued, 

any unreasonably loud, disturbing, or unnecessary noise which causes material distress, 
discomfort or injury to persons of ordinary sensibilities. It also shall be unlawful for any 
person to make, assist in making, permit, continue, cause to be made or continued or permit 
the continuance of any sound which exceeds the maximum permitted sound levels specified in 
section 15-10.2. The acts enumerated in this article, among others, are declared to be sound 
nuisances which are unreasonably loud, irritating, disturbing or excessive sounds in violation 
of this article, but such enumeration shall not be deemed to be exclusive: 

 



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 2 of 6 
 

(a) Horns or other signaling devices. The sounding of any horn or signaling device on any 
automobile or other vehicle on any street or public place of the city, except as a danger 
warning; the creation by means of any such signaling device of any unreasonably loud or 
harsh sound; and the sounding of any such device for an unnecessary and unreasonable 
period of time.  

(b) Animals, birds, etc.  

(1) The keeping of any animal or bird that causes or makes frequent or long and 
continued sound, that unreasonably disturbs, injures, or endangers the comfort, 
repose, health, peace, or safety of ordinary, reasonable persons of normal 
sensibilities and ordinary tastes, habits, and modes of living who reside in the 
vicinity thereof is hereby prohibited and declared to be unlawful as a sound 
nuisance in violation of this article, regardless of whether the sound so created by 
said animal or bird is within the permissible levels specified in section 15-10.2. 

 
(2) In any prosecution for a violation of this section, the fact that any animal or bird 

has been allowed or permitted to persistently and chronically violate this section, 
as demonstrated by the issuance of three (3) or more citations and/or the receipt of 
three (3) or more complaints from more than one household within a sixty (60) 
day period creates a rebuttable presumption that such noise was in violation of 
this article. 

(c)  Power and pneumatic equipment. Operate or permit to be operated any power or 
pneumatic equipment outdoors in a residential area, or within one hundred fifty (150) feet 
of the boundary line of a residential lot between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 
Motorized electric or fuel powered equipment including, but not limited to tractors, 
lawnmowers and other similar devices or equipment shall be considered power 
equipment. 

(d) Defect in vehicle or load. The use of any automobile or other vehicle so out of repair, so 
loaded or in such manner as to create loud and unnecessary grating, grinding, rattling or 
other noise.  

(e)  Construction or repairing of buildings. The erection (including excavating), demolition, 
alteration or repair of any building other than between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 
p.m. on weekdays, except in case of urgent necessity in the interest of public health and 
safety, and then only with a permit from the building inspector which shall be granted for 
a period of time not to exceed the period in which the emergency continues.  

(f) Schools, courts, churches, hospitals. The creation of any excessive noise on any street 
adjacent to any school, church or court while the same are in use, or adjacent to any 
hospital, which unlawfully interferes with the workings of such institution or which 
disturbs or unduly annoys the patients in the hospital, provided conspicuous signs are 
displayed in such streets indicating that the same is a school, church, hospital or court 
street.  



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 

(g)  Vehicular sound amplification systems.  

(1) A sound amplifier which is part of or connected to a radio, stereo receiver, 
compact disc player, mp3, cellular devices or other similar device or service 
operated within a motor vehicle operated at such a volume that  is plainly audible.  

(2) If the sound [is] audible at a distance of thirty (30) feet from the source or causes 
a person to be aware of or feel the vibration accompanying the sound at a distance 
of thirty (30) feet from the source, a prima facie case shall be established that the 
radio, stereo receiver, compact disc player, cassette player or other similar device 
is being operated at a volume that is plainly audible.  

For purposes of this subsection, “plainly audible” means any sound produced by a sound 
amplification system from within a vehicle that clearly can be heard at a distance of thirty 
(30) feet or more. Measurement standards shall be the auditory senses, based on direct 
line of sight. Words or phrases need not be discernible, and bass reverberations are 
included. 

(h) It shall be prima facie unlawful and a violation of this article for any person to operate or 
cause to be operated any source of vibration or to discharge or allow the escape of any 
vibration in such a manner as to cause by such operation a vibration that can be detected 
without the aid of instruments at any point within the receiving real property. 

Sec.15-10.2. Maximum permissible sound levels. 

(a) No person shall conduct, permit or allow any activity or sound source to produce a sound 
that is discernible beyond the property line of the property on which the sound is being received 
that, when measured as provided in section 15-10.3,  exceeds the following applicable dB(A) 
level listed for the property on which the sound is received:  

(1) Residential property.  
 
a. Sixty-five dB(A) during daytime hours. 
b. Sixty dB(A) during nighttime hours. 

 
(2) Non-residential property. Seventy db(A) during either daytime or nighttime hours.  

(b) The dB(A) levels set forth in this section applies to the property where the sound is being 
received. Any sound that, when measured at the property where the sound is being received, 
exceeds the dB(A) levels set forth in this section is a prima facie violation of this article.  

Sec. 15-10.3. Measures and Standards 

Under this article, measurement of sound may be made, as applicable, with a sound level 
meter meeting the standards prescribed by the American National Standards Institute (ANSI). 



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 4 of 6 
 

Measurements of sound shall be taken so as to provide a proper representation of the sound being 
measured. The Chief of Police shall develop procedures to be followed in measuring sounds.  

Sec. 15-10.4. Exemptions.  

Sounds caused by the following are exempt from the prohibitions set out in section 15-10.2 
and are in addition to the exemptions specifically set forth in this section:  

(1) Repairs of utility structures which pose a clear and immediate danger to life, health, or 
significant loss of property;  

(2) Sirens, whistles, or bells lawfully used by emergency vehicles, or other alarm systems 
used in case of fire, collision, civil defense, police activity, or imminent danger; 

(3) The emission of sound for the purpose of alerting persons to the existence of an 
emergency or the emission of sound in the performance of emergency work;  

(4) Repairs or excavations of bridges, streets, or highways by or on behalf of the City of 
Alvin, or other governmental entity, between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., when 
public welfare and convenience renders it impractical to perform the work between 7:00 
a.m. and 7:00 p.m.;  

(5) Reasonable activities conducted on public playgrounds and public or private school 
grounds, which are conducted in accordance with the manner in which such spaces are 
generally used, including, but not limited to, school athletic and school entertainment 
events; and 

(6) Individuals possessing an authorized permit from the City, such as a special event or 
parade permit, shall be allowed to engage in activity authorized by the permit. 

Sec. 15-11. Noise - Use of amplifying devices and sound trucks.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to use or operate, or cause to be used or operated, any 
mechanical or electrical device, machine, apparatus or instrument to intensify, amplify or 
reproduce the human voice or to produce, reproduce, intensify or amplify any other sound in any 
building or on any premises of the city or in or on any vehicle in the city for any purpose 
whereby the sound therefrom is cast directly upon the public streets or places, or which is so 
placed or operated that the sound coming therefrom can be heard on the streets or on neighboring 
premises to the annoyance or inconvenience of a reasonable person having normal nervous 
sensibilities, and being of ordinary tastes, habits and modes of living.  

 
(b) Notwithstanding the above provisions, amplifying devices and sound trucks may be used 

in the city provided a permit therefor is first obtained from the chief of police and such permit 
designates the term of the permit as determined by the Chief of Police.  

 



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 5 of 6 
 

(c) Businesses who during the course of normal operations provide live or pre-recorded 
music or voice amplification and which have designated areas for live music or pre-recorded 
music or voice amplification, such as an outside stage, bandstand, or similar designated area 
where outside events or meals are held may, upon application to the Chief of Police, obtain a 
permit which is good for one (1) calendar year from date of issuance.  

 
(d) All permits issued under this ordinance are subject to restrictions designated at time of 

issuance and may be revoked due to violations of restrictions or other cause.  
 
. . . 
 
Section 3.  Severability.   Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 4.  Penalty. Any person who violates or causes, allows, or permits another to violate any 
provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction 
thereof, shall be punished by a fine in accordance with the general penalty section 1-5 of the 
Code of Ordinances.  Each occurrence of any such violation of this Ordinance shall constitute a 
separate offense. Each day on which any such violation of this Ordinance occurs shall constitute 
a separate offense. 
 
Section 5.  Publication.  The City Clerk of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish this 
ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as 
required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapt. 52, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading on the ______day of __________, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ______________________________  



 
 

Ord 16-B                   Page 6 of 6 
 

      Dixie Roberts, City Clerk         Paul A. Horn, Mayor 

 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 

Sum
with
Qui
Mex
chil
 
Reo
Our
qua
proj
 
The
and
crea
crea
barg
incr
prob
 
We 
 

 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   A
h a quality 
intana Beach
xico have to
ldren about t

opening the 
r wetland are
ality needed 
ject will be u

e opening of 
d the nation. 
ates a flood 
ates an unna
ges to safely
reased siltat
blem.  Our i

have a long

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

 

: Econom

m:   Consid
action 
modern
restora
Bernar

  ☐Ordinance

As residents 
of life that 
h public pie
o offer.  The
the delicate b

mouth of th
eas and beac
to sustain th

used to help 

f the river als
 During hig
hazard for 

atural curren
y navigate th
tion and dra
ndustry is hi

g history in B

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

Age

mic Develop

der Resoluti
to pursue S

nization of 
ation of the l
rd River; and

e    ☒Resolutio

of Brazoria 
is second to
er provide u
e pier is not 
balance Mot

he San Bern
ches are at ri
hese treasur
sustain our 

so provides n
gh water ev
the industry
nt along the
his portion o
aft restrictio
ighly depend

Brazoria Cou

venue  

N/A  

enda 

Meetin

pment 

ion 16-R-05
State of Tex

the Quinta
lower San B
d setting for

n    ☐Contract/

County, we 
o none.  The
us all an ou
just a popul

ther Nature h

ard River is
isk and this 
res.  The ben
beaches and

numerous se
vents, with th
y and local 
e Gulf Intra
of the GIWW
ns which re
dent upon a 

unty and are 

Expenditur

Amo

Required

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   2

Contac

5; supporting
xas and Fede
ana Beach 

Bernard Rive
rth other prov

/Agreement   ☐

are blessed 
e recreation 

utlet to enjoy
lar fishing s
has created a

s critical to m
project will 
neficial use 

d revitalize w

econd and th
he river mo
citizens alon

acoastal Wat
W.  This unn
equires mor
fully capable

proud to sup

re N/A

ount:

X    Date 

mmen

2/18/2016 

ct: Larry B

g the Brazo
eral Restore
public fish

er by dredgin
visions relate

☐ Public Hearin

to live in a c
n and educat
y everything

spot for us b
along the coa

maintaining 
help restore
of the dred

wetlands area

hird order eco
outh closed, 
ng the river

aterway (GIW
natural curre
re dredging 
e GIWW. 

pport these i

X Budge

Completed

ntary

Buehler, Eco

oria County
e Act grants
hing pier an
ng open the 
ed thereto. 

ng    ☐ Discuss

coastal envir
tional oppor
g the Texas

but also a cr
ast. 

this balance
e the natural 
dge material 
as. 

onomic bene
the water b

r.  Addition
WW) which
ent increase
along the w

initiatives.   

eted Item: 

d: February

y 

onomic Dev. 

y Commissio
s for the res
nd for the 
silted mout

sion & Direction

ronment tha
rtunities prov
s Coast and 
ritical venue 

e along the 
river flow a
from the riv

efits to indus
backs up the
ally, this ba

h impedes th
s sediment f
waterway to

Yes No

y 11, 2016 

Director 

oners’ Cour
storation and

ecosystems
th of the San

n 

at provides u
vided by the
the Gulf o
to teach ou

Texas coast
and the wate
ver dredging

stry, the state
e river which
ackwash also
he ability o
flow causing
o correct the

o  N/A

t 
d 
s 
n 

s 
e 
f 

ur 

t.  
r 
g 

e 
h 
o 
f 
g 
e 

X 



 
Re

 
 

Re

Re

 

Support
 Resoluti

 

ecommenda

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

ting docum
ion 16-R-05 

ation:   M
Co
gr
pi

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

ments attac

Move to a
ommissione
rants for the
ier and for th

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

ched: 

approve Re
rs’ Court ac

e restoration 
he ecosystem

able ☒ 

☒ 

esolution 1
ction to pur
and modern

ms restoration

 Revie

 Revie

6-R-05; su
rsue State o
nization of 
n of the low

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

upporting t
of Texas an
the Quintan

wer San Bern

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

the Brazor
nd Federal R
na Beach pu
ard river. 

fficer, if applic

ria County 
Restore Act 
ublic fishing 

cable ☐ 



Res. 16-R-05 
Support for Quintana Beach Restoration & Opening of Mouth of San Bernard River 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-R-05 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS, SUPPORTING THE BRAZORIA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ 
COURT ACTION TO PURSUE STATE OF TEXAS AND FEDERAL 
RESTORE ACT GRANTS FOR THE RESTORATION AND 
MODERNIZATION OF THE QUINTANA BEACH PUBLIC FISHING 
PIER AND FOR THE ECOSYSTEMS RESTORATION OF THE LOWER 
SAN BERNARD RIVER BY DREDGING OPEN THE SILTED MOUTH 
OF THE SAN BERNARD RIVER; AND SETTING FORTH OTHER 
PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”), is a municipal corporation that provides 
a full-range of governmental services to its citizens, and the City owns and operates water 
production and distribution facilities and wastewater collection and treatment facilities and 
provides other municipal services; and 

WHEREAS, the City has a long standing tradition of supporting Brazoria County and 
Brazoria County Commissioners Court on items that will benefit the entire county and its residents; 
and 

WHEREAS, the residents of Brazoria County are blessed to live in a coastal environment 
that provides us with a quality of life that is second to none, and the recreation and educational 
opportunities provided by the Quintana Beach public pier provide us all an outlet to enjoy 
everything the Texas Coast and the Gulf of Mexico have to offer; and 

WHEREAS, reopening the mouth of the San Bernard River is critical to maintaining this 
balance along the Texas coast, and our wetland areas and beaches are at risk and this project will 
help restore the natural river flow and the water quality needed to sustain these treasures, and 

 
WHEREAS, the opening of the river also provides numerous second and third order 

economic benefits to industry, the state and the nation.  During high water events, with the river 
mouth closed, the water backs up the river which creates a flood hazard for the industry and local 
citizens along the river. NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. Findings 
 
 (a) That the facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Resolution are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted as part of this Resolution 
for all purposes. 
 
 (b) It is hereby found and declared that the terms of this Resolution will be 
beneficial to the City and its citizens. 
 
Section 2. Confirmation and Ratification of supporting the Brazoria County 
Commissioners’ court action to pursue State of Texas and Federal Restore Act grants for the 



Res. 16-R-05 
Support for Quintana Beach Restoration & Opening of Mouth of San Bernard River 

Page 2 of 2 

restoration and modernization of the Quintana Beach public fishing pier and for the ecosystems 
restoration of the lower San Bernard river by dredging open the silted mouth of the San Bernard 
River. 

 
Section 3.   Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that this meeting was 
open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given, all as 
required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 
 

This Resolution shall be effective on the date of passage in accordance with the Alvin 
City Charter. 
 
AND, IT IS SO RESOLVED. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on the day of , 2016. 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST:                                                                        CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

 
 
 
 

By:    By:    
Dixie Roberts, City Clerk Paul A. Horn, Mayor 


	Council Agenda 02/18/16
	Board & Commission Minutes
	Library Board Minutes - 11/05/15
	Senior Board Minutes - 01/11/16

	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. CC Minutes WS 02/04/16
	B. CC Minutes 02/04/16
	C. Election Contract
	Contract with Brazoria County
	Price Comparison Table

	D. Racial Profiling Report
	Report


	OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Presentation of CAFR ending 9/30/15
	Auditor Disclosure Letter
	FY 15 CAFR
	Single Audit Reports

	B. Appointment of Auditor for FY16
	Engagement Letter

	C. Res 16-R-06; Donation to AAAC
	Resolution 16-R-06

	D. Ord 16-B; Chapter 15; Noise
	Ordinance 16-B; Redlined
	Ordinance 16-B; Clean Copy

	E. Res 16-R-05; Quintana Beach/San Bernard River
	Resolution 16-R-05





